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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Commissioners and Management
Startex-Jackson-Wellford-Duncan Water District
Lyman, South Carolina

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Startex-Jackson-Wellford-Duncan Water District (the
"District") for the year ended June 30, 2018, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively
comprise the District's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.
Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. This includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the
United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.
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Members of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants
Members of the South Carolina Association of Certified Public Accountants
Members of the North carolina Association of Certified Public Accountants

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of Startex-Jackson-Wellford-Duncan Water District as of June 30, 2018, and the respective
changes in financial position and cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
Emphasis of Matter

As discussed in Note A, the District implemented the provisions of Governmental Accounting Standards Board
(GASB) Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other than Pensions
during the year ended June 30, 2018. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.
Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's discussion
and analysis and budgetary comparison information on 4-11 and the required supplementary information on pages
46-48 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic
financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an
essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational,
economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which
consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the
information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide
any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to
express an opinion or provide any assurance.
Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that collectively comprise
the Startex-Jackson-Wellford-Duncan Water District's basic financial statements. The supplementary information on
pages 49-55 is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial
statements.
The supplementary information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relate directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In
our opinion, the supplementary information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial
statements as a whole.
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Other Reporting Required by Governmental Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated November 19, 2018, on
our consideration of Startex-Jackson-Wellford-Duncan Water District's internal control over financial reporting and
on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and
other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over
financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering Startex-Jackson-Wellford-Duncan Water District's internal control
over financial reporting and compliance.

Spartanburg, South Carolina
November 19, 2018
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

STARTEX-JACKSON-WELLFORD-DUNCAN WATER DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The following discussion and analysis is offered by management of the Startex-Jackson-Wellford-Duncan Water
District (the "District") as a narrative overview of its financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018 as
compared to the District's eleven month short year ("SY") for the period beginning August 1, 2016 and ending
June 30, 2017. Since inception, the District has been on an August 1 to July 31 fiscal year and moved to a June
30 fiscal year end for financial reporting purposes effective August 1, 2016. The use of a June 30 fiscal year for
budgeting and financial reporting will align financial data with many similar entities throughout the State of South
Carolina, especially the Public Employee Benefit Administration (PESA). The short year in 2017 transitions from
the July 31 fiscal year basis to the June 30 fiscal year basis; as such, comparisons between the current year and
prior years will be difficult because of the different number of months reflected in each year. Please consider this
information in conjunction with the audited financial statements and related notes following this section.
Financial Highlights - Fiscal Year 2018

•

The District's financial position decreased by 1.05% during the prior fiscal year to $66.8 million. The
District recorded a one-time prior period adjustment of $3.1 million for the implementation of GASB 75,
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions (OPEB).

•

The District continues to maintain strong cash reserves. At June 30, 2018, unrestricted cash and
investments provide for over 430 days of operating expenses.

•

Consistent increases in tap fee income, system improvement fee income, and water line extensions
donated by developers point to a steadily growing customer base. The number of customers increased
4.75% to 24,700 during the fiscal year.

Overview of the Financial Statements

The District has prepared and is responsible for the financial statements and related information included in this
report. Such information has been subjected to the District's system of internal control and audited by
independent external auditors.
The following management's discussion and analysis (MD&A) serves as an introduction to the financial
statements. The MD&A represents management's examination and analysis of the District's financial condition
and performance and should be read in conjunction with the independent auditors' report, the basic financial
statements, and supplemental information. Summary financial statement data, key financial and operational
indicators, budgets, bond resolutions, and other management tools were used for this analysis.
The Statement of Net Position presents the financial position of the District on a full accrual, historical basis as of
June 30. The statement presents information on all of the District's assets and deferred outflows of resources,
and liabilities and deferred inflows of resources, with the difference reported as net position. The statement may
serve as a useful indicator of the District's financial condition, capital structure and liquidity, and future financial
viability.
The Statement of Revenues. Expenses and Changes in Net Position presents the business activity and results of
operations for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018. The statement measures the success of the District's
operations and can be used to evaluate the profitability and credit worthiness of the District.
The Statement of Cash Flows presents the changes in cash and cash equivalents, resulting from operational,
capital financing, and investing activities. The statement provides information as to the sources and uses of cash,
where the cash was derived from and what the cash was used for, and the overall change in the cash balance
during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018.
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STARTEX-JACKSON-WELLFORD-DUNCAN WATER DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)

Overview of the Financial Statements (continued)

The Notes to the Financial Statements provide required disclosures and other information that is essential to a full
understanding of data provided in the statements. The notes present information about the District's accounting
policies, significant account balances and activities, material risks, obligations, commitments, contingencies, and
subsequent events, if any.
Supplementary Information includes detail schedules of operations and other required supplementary information
useful to the understanding of the financial statements as a whole.

Net Position

The following information provides a summary of the financial activities of the District:
Condensed Statements of Net Position (in millions)
As of
6/30/2018

As of
6/30/2017

Current assets-unrestricted
Current assets-restricted
Noncurrent assets-unrestricted
Capital assets-net of depreciation

$

6.3
5.3
6.7
69.2

$

6.5
7.1
6.8
66.7

Total assets

$

87.5

$

87.1

Deferred outflows from pension
Deferred outflows from OPEB

$

0.9
0.1

$

0.8

$

Current liabilities (payable from unrestricted)
Current liabilities (payable from restricted)
Noncurrent liabilities

$

1.5

$

Total liabilities

$

21.4

$

20.1

Deferred inflows from pension

$

0.2

$

0.3

$

59.7
1.9

$

54.9
5.5
7.1

$

67.5

Net position:
Invested in capital assets (net of related debt)
Unrestricted
Restricted
Total net position

$

2.5

17.4

16.1

5.2
$

1.5

2.5

66.8
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STARTEX-JACKSON-WELLFORD-DUNCAN WATER DISTRICT
MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)

Net Position (continued)

Net Position
The District's overall financial position decreased 1.05% during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018, from $67.5
million to $66.8 million.
Unrestricted net position decreased $3.6 million from $5.5 million to $1.9 million mainly as a result of a one-time
prior period adjustment of $3.1 million. This cumulative effect of change in accounting principle relates to the
implementation of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) pronouncement; "GASB 75",
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions (OPEB). The
change required the District to report the difference in the net OPEB liability based on the GASB 75 Valuation
as of July 1, 2017.
The remaining components of the District's net position increased $3.0 million as the District purchased and
constructed capital assets and paid down long term debt.
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STARTEX-JACKSON-WELLFORD-DUNCAN WATER DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)

Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
Condensed Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
(in millions)
For the Periods Ended

6/30/2018
Operating Revenues:
Water Sales

$

Miscellaneous Operating Revenues
Total Operating Revenues

8.2
1.6

6/30/2017

$

7.4
1.3

9.8

8.7

2.4
6.2
2.5
11.1

2.1
5.2
2.0
9.3

(1.3}

{0.6}

2.7

Operating Expenses:
Direct Operating Expenses
General and Administrative Expenses
Depreciation Expense
Total Operating Expenses
Net Operating Income (Loss)

Net Nonoperating Income

2.7

2.6
0.2
2.4

Net Income

1.4

1.8

Capital Contributions

1.0

0.9

Increase in net position

2.4

2.7

Nonoperating Revenues (including property taxes)
Nonoperating Expenses

Cumulative effect of change in accounting
principle

{3.1}

Increase in net position
Net position, beginning of year
Net position, end of year

(0.7)
67.5
66.8

$

$

2.7
64.8
67.5
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STARTEX-JACKSON-WELLFORD-DUNCAN WATER DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)

Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position (continued)
Revenues
Total operating revenues of the District were $9.8 million for fiscal year ("FY") 2018 as compared to $8.7 million
in SY 2017. The increase is related primarily to one more month of revenue during fiscal year 2018 in
comparison to the eleven-month short year.
In fiscal year 2018, the number of customers grew 4.75% to approximately 24,700. However, monthly residential
usage continues to average less than 5,000 gallons per month (approximately 60 gallons per person per day) due
mainly to more water efficient plumbing fixtures and appliances in newer homes.
Miscellaneous operating revenues were $1.6 million in fiscal year 2018 as compared to $1.3 million in the eleven
month fiscal year 2017. The increase is primarily related to one more month of revenue in FY 2018 as compared
to SY 2017. Additionally, the District set 1,090 residential taps in FY 2018, an increase of 30% as compared to the
SY 2017.
Expenses
Direct operating expenses were $2.4 million in FY 2018 as compared to $2.1 million in SY 2017. The increase is
mainly the result of the costs associated with setting over 300 additional residential taps, and the one-time charge
of expensing the accumulated design and site preparation costs ($155,000) for the construction of a 1.5 million
gallon tank on Highway 101 near Interstate 85. Tank construction was planned to support growth that was
projected for this area. The major impetus for that growth projection failed to materialize so the tank construction
at this site was cancelled. Please see Economic Outlook of the District at the end of this MD&A.
General and administrative (G&A) expenses were $6.2 million in FY 2018 as compared to $5.2 million in SY
2017. The following provides a discussion of the major differences:
•

Retirement expense increased $420,000 in FY 2018 as compared to SY 2017 due to the changes in the
net pension liability and related deferred inflows and outflows associated with the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASS) pronouncement, "GASB 68".

•

Other payroll related costs increased $600,000 in FY 2018 when compared to SY 2017. A significant
portion of the increase is related to an extra month of expense in FY 2018. In addition, the District hired 5
new employees in FY 2018, eliminating the use of temporary labor and preparing for the retirement of
certain employees (see Economic Outlook of the District at the end of this MD&A). The District also
experienced increased health insurance costs in its self-funded health insurance plan in FY 2018 as a
result of several major medical events.

Net Nonoperating Income
Net nonoperating income was $2.7 million in FY 2018 as compared to $2.4 million in SY 2017. The increase is
related to property tax revenues to fund general obligation bond principal and interest payments.
Cumulative Effect of Change in Accounting Principle
The District recorded a one-time prior period adjustment of $3.1 million for the implementation of GASS 75,
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions (OPEB). The District
hired a consultant to perform an actuarial valuation of the District's net OPES liability at July 1, 2017 under GASS
75.
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STARTEX-JACKSON-WELLFORD-DUNCAN WATER DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)

Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position (continued)
Cumulative Effect of Change in Accounting Principle (continued)

In previous years, the District recorded OPEB expense based on the annual required contribution under GASB
45. GASB 75 required the District to increase the net OPEB liability to the full actuarial valuation amount at July 1,
2017. The prior period adjustment increased the net OPEB liability from $1,745,525 to $4,841,000.
Investment in Capital Assets and Debt Administration

The District's investment in capital assets is presented in conjunction with its debt administration because the
District issues debt solely to fund a portion of its capital improvement projects (CIP) plan.
Capital Assets (in millions)

Land
Buildings
Distribution System
Dams and Reservoirs
Vehicles
Metering Infrastructure
Equipment and Furnishings
Filter Plants
Construction in Progress

As of
6/30/2018
$
1.5
2.1
43.7
9.6
1.0
0.5
2.3
34.0
3.4

Asof
6/30/2017
1.5
$
2.1
41.9
9.6
0.9

98.1

93.4

(28.9)

(26.7)

Total Capital Assets
Less: Accumulated Depreciation
Net Capital Assets

$

69.2

2.1
34.0
1.3

$

66.7

Capital assets, net of related depreciation of $2,470,435, increased 3.61 % to $69.2 million. Major capital asset
additions for that time period include the following expenditures:
•

Progress on a project to construct a new water tank and booster pump station in the Little Chicago area
of the District;

•

Final stages of a project to construct a new booster pump station to better serve the Reidville pressure
zone;

•

Completion of a pilot study to test Advanced Metering Infrastructure alternative;

•

Purchase of 1.31 acres on Spartanburg Highway adjacent to the Administrative Offices for future use;

•

Improvements along Mayfield Road and Leonard Road to upgrade water lines for development and
increase fire flows; and

•

Completion of the purchase of a new asset management system.
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STARTEX-JACKSON-WELLFORD-DUNCAN WATER DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)

Investment in Capital Assets and Debt Administration (continued)

Capital asset expenditures were made in accordance with the District's five year capital improvements plan, and
the District's engineering master plan. In FY 2016, the District completed an update of its engineering master plan
which analyzed the District's current condition, considered future projections, and presented recommendations for
improvements. The District normally updates these plans on a five-year cycle.
The District funds its CIP plan with capital reserves and bonded indebtedness. The total outstanding
indebtedness consists of revenue bonds to be repaid from the net revenues of the District and general obligation
bonds to be repaid from property taxes collected by Spartanburg County on behalf of the District.
Bonded Indebtedness by Type and Issue Date (in millions)
Asof
6/30/2018
2017 General Obligation
2016 General Obligation
2015 General Obligation
2012 General Obligation
2011 Revenue Bond

$

Total indebtedness

$

2.6
1.9
3.9

Asof
6/30/2017
$

3.1
2.2
4.2
1.2
0.9

$

11.6

0.6
9.0

In FY 2018, the District did not issue any new debt.
In FY 2019, the District will make principal and interest payments of $282,429 to service revenue bond
indebtedness and $2,124,267 to service general obligation bond indebtedness.
Economic Outlook for the District

The District projects customer growth at 3.0% in FY 2019. Average annual residential water usage has remained
relatively unchanged over the past several years. The District does not expect this average to increase
significantly in the new budget year. The budgeted operating revenue for FY 2019 is $9,677,000; budgeted
operating expense, excluding depreciation, is $8,553,400. With the adoption of the budget, the District plans to
increase cash reserves for future health care costs and fund capital projects.
Ad valorem property taxes in the amount of 10.0 mils is estimated to be levied in FY 2019 for general obligation
bond debt service, which is within the historical average of 10.0 mils to 13.0 mils. The District's operating budget
contains no rate increase for its customers. However, management will continue to review the existing water rate
and fee structure.
Through the shifting of duties, training, and the effective use of technology, the District has absorbed the growth
of the system over the last 5-7 years without significantly increasing the number of full-time employees.
Management continues to prepare for the retirement of several seasoned employees and will continue to evaluate
staffing needs as the District grows. Staffing levels may rise temporarily as these employees prepare to retire.

10

STARTEX-JACKSON-WELLFORD-DUNCAN WATER DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)

Economic Outlook for the District (continued)

The District's management team is making progress on major goals in the five year strategic business plan in the
following areas: (1) ensure adequate supplies and quality water resources are available for the District; (2) ensure
adequate treatment capacity and water quality compliance with all state and federal regulations; (3) ensure
infrastructure is properly financed, constructed, maintained, and operated to provide reliable delivery of high
quality water; (4) ensure that the District remains customer friendly by providing excellent customer service; and
(5) ensure adequate staffing and maintain a high-performing, engaged workforce.
Over the past couple of years, the District has conducted a pilot test of Automated Metering Infrastructure (AMI),
including the use of Smart Meters. AMI will allow the District to read these meters from a fixed antenna mounted
on a water tank or a tower located in areas of the District where a water tank is not present. The meters measure
flow at lower volumes and allow the District to obtain readings daily to detect service leaks earlier. The District has
selected Sensus (a division of Xylem) to provide AMI on a Network-as-a-Service (NaaS) pricing model. The
District will own the meters and Sensus will construct and maintain the reading network for a monthly fee based
on the number of meters read. In fiscal year 2019, the District plans to hire a contractor and replace
approximately 2,500 meters. The remaining meters are scheduled to be changed out over the next 3-5 years.
In September 2018, the District completed construction of a new 4 million gallons per day (MGD) booster pump
station on Rogers Bridge Road in Duncan to benefit the Reidville pressure zone of the District. The project called
for a larger diameter pipeline, including a bore of Interstate 85, to accommodate the extra flow. The District was
planning the construction of a 1.5 million gallon tank on Highway 101 near Interstate 85 to support growth that
was projected for this area. The major impetus for that growth projection failed to materialize so the tank
construction at this site was cancelled. However, this new pump station will allow the District to delay the
replacement of the existing water tank on Highway 101 for 5 or more years.
In the fall of 2019, the District will award contracts for the construction of a new water tank and booster pump
station in the Little Chicago area of the District, north of the Friendship pressure zone. The new 750,000 gallon
tank will be constructed on property owned by the District that is nearby the existing tank. The 3 MGD booster
pump station will be constructed on property that the District recently purchased for that purpose. This project is
expected to be completed in the fall of 2019.
The District completed training and implementation of new Enterprise Asset Management (EAM) software in early
2018. Work order tracking, inventory, and preventive maintenance modules were implemented. Certain aspects
of the system, namely the integration with Geographic Information Systems (GIS), were delayed due to
compatibility issues between the SJWD GIS and the new Maximo system. An upgrade of the GIS system and the
underlying database structures were completed in August 2018, and the system will be completed with new GIS
components as part of the Maximo Phase Two project approved in the FY 2019 capital improvement projects
plan.
The District continues to maintain an excellent bond rating from Standard and Poor's (AA-) and Moody's (Aa3).
The District will not issue any new debt in FY 2019. However, the District plans to issue approximately $8,000,000
in general obligation bond debt in the spring of 2020 for the initial phases of an expansion project at the
membrane treatment plant.
Requests for Information

Questions concerning any of the information contained in this report should be directed to Larry Christopher,
Chief Financial Officer, SJWD Water District, P.O. Box 607, Lyman, SC 29365.
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BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

STARTEX-JACKSON-WELLFORD-DUNCAN WATER DISTRICT
EXHIBIT A - STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2018
{SEE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT)

ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

2018
CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents

$

2,848,928

Cash and cash equivalents - restricted

5,259,737

Investments

1,624,553

Funds held by Spartanburg County Treasurer

26,205

Accounts receivable customers, net of an allowance
for doubtful accounts of $110,000

1,124,723

Inventories

558,319

Accrued interest receivable

42,549

Other current assets

64,300
11,549,314

NONCURRENTASSETS

Investments

6,758,591

Capital assets-net of accumulated depreciation

69,200,591
75,959,182

TOTAL ASSETS

$

87,508,496

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Deferred outflows from pension

$

836,131

Deferred outflows from OPES

$

118,428
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The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of these statements

STARTEX-JACKSON-WELLFORD-DUNCAN WATER DISTRICT
EXHIBIT A-STATEMENT OF NET POSITION (continued)
JUNE 30, 2018
{SEE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT)

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES, AND NET POSITION

2018
CURRENT LIABILITIES (PAYABLE FROM OPERATING FUND)
Current portion of revenue bonds payable

$

Accounts payable
Accrued salaries and wages
Accrued compensated absences-current portion
Accrued interest expense-revenue bonds
State retirement payable
Customer meter and tap deposits
Other accrued expenses
Sewer collections payable to others

267,046
189,222
122,049
136,102
4,592
44,739
345,638
67,204
339,241
1,515,833

CURRENT LIABILITIES (PAYABLE FROM RESTRICTED ASSETS)

2,001,908
482,912
35,869
2,520,689

Current portion of general obligation bonds
Accounts payable-construction
Accrued interest expense-general obligation bonds

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES

6,391,363
345,229
78,467
5,061,000
5,521,647
17,397,706

General obligation bonds
Revenue bonds
Accrued compensated absences
Net OPEB liability
Net pension liability

TOTAL LIABILITIES

$

21,434,228

$

194,591

$

59,671,672

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred inflows from pension
NET POSITION
Invested in capital assets (Net of related debt)
Restricted for:

3,840,705
1,445,237
1,876,622

Capital projects
Debt service
Unrestricted
TOTAL NET POSITION

$

66,834,236
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The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of these statements

STARTEX-JACKSON-WELLFORD-DUNCAN WATER DISTRICT
EXHIBIT 8- STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018
(SEE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT)

2018
OPERATING REVENUES
Water Sales
Metered rates
Flat rates

$

7,836,527
391,803
8,228,330

Miscellaneous operating revenues
Tap and meter revenues
Customer service charges
Reconnect and late payment charges
Sewer billing charges
Other

621,433
76,975
521,431
283,058
28,304

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES

9,759,531

OPERATING EXPENSES
Direct operating expenses
General and administrative expenses
Depreciation

2,391,145
6,178,450
2,470,435

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES

11,040,030

NET OPERATING LOSS

(1,280,499)

PROPERTY TAX REVENUE

2,652,954

NET NONOPERATING INCOME

11,618

INCOME BEFORE CAPITAL
CONTRIBUTIONS

1,384,073

CONTRIBUTED CAPITAL

997,130

INCREASE IN NET POSITION BEFORE
CUMULATIVE EFFECT OF CHANGE
IN ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLE

2,381,203

CUMULATIVE EFFECT OF CHANGE
IN ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLE

(3,095,475)

DECREASE IN NET POSITION

(714,272)

TOTAL NET POSITION,
BEGINNING OF YEAR
TOTAL NET POSITION,
END OF YEAR

67,548,508

$

66,834,236
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The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of these statements

STARTEX-JACKSON-WELLFORD-DUNCAN WATER DISTRICT
EXHIBIT C-STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018
(SEE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT)

2018
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Cash received from customers
Cash payments to suppliers
Cash payments to employees
NET CASH PROVIDED BY
OPERATING ACTIVITIES

$

1,468,098

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Acquisition and construction of capital assets
Property tax collections
Contributed capital
Principal paid on general obligation bonds
Principal paid on revenue bonds
General obligation bond interest, paying
agent's fees and legal fees
Revenue bond interest, paying agent's fees and legal fees
Other nonoperating revenues in excess of
nonoperating expenses
Sale of assets
NET CASH USED FOR
CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

(4,111,495)
2,647,647
549,330
(2,340,000)
(259,182)
(179,311)
(24,291)

44,450
23,000

{3,649,852}

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest received on investments
Proceeds from sales of investments
Purchases of investments
NET CASH USED FOR
INVESTING ACTIVITIES

262,580
1,155,000
{1,492,425}
{74,845}

NET DECREASE IN
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

(2,256,599)
10,365,264

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR

9,732,563
(5,577,702)
{2,686,763}

$

8,108,665
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STARTEX-JACKSON-WELLFORD-DUNCAN WATER DISTRICT
EXHIBIT C - STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018
{SEE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT)

2018
RECONCILIATION OF NET OPERATING LOSS
TO NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
NET OPERATING LOSS

$

(1,280,499)

ADJUSTMENTS TO RECONCILE NET OPERATING
LOSS TO NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING
ACTIVITIES:
NON-CASH EXPENSES
Depreciation
Decrease in provision for doubtful accounts
Net decrease in pension assets and liabilities
Net decrease in OPEB assets and liabilities
(INCREASE) DECREASE IN CURRENT ASSETS
Accounts receivable
Inventories
Other current assets
INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Accrued wages
Accrued compensated absences
State retirement payable
Meter and tap deposits
Other accrued expenses
NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING
ACTIVITIES

2,470,435
(31,000)
94,561
101,572
(41,188)
32,448
18,103
16,761
23,663
65,205
(1,346)
4,318
(4,935}

$

1,468,098

Decrease in fair value of investments

$

{175,845)

Contributed capital assets

$

464,255

Amortization of bond premium

$

26,489

Capitalized interest costs

$

20,023

SUPPLEMENTAL NONCASH DISCLOSURE
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STARTEX-JACKSON-WELLFORD-DUNCAN WATER DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2018
(SEE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT)

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Reporting Entity
The Startex-Jackson-Wellford-Duncan Water District ("The District") is a special purpose district created in the
year 1956 by the General Assembly of the State of South Carolina. The District was established for the purpose
of building, constructing, operating and maintaining water lines and water mains throughout the District. The
District is governed by a five member commission appointed by the Governor upon recommendation of the
legislative delegation of Spartanburg County. The commissioners serve six year terms.
Change in Fiscal Year End
Since inception, the District has been on an August 1 to July 31 fiscal year and moved to a July 1 to June 30
fiscal year end for financial reporting purposes effective August 1, 2016. The use of a June 30 fiscal year
for budgeting and financial reporting aligns the financial data with many similar entities throughout the State
of South Carolina, especially the Public Employee Benefit Administration (PEBA).
Basis of Accounting
The District operates as an enterprise fund. Enterprise funds are used to account for operations which are
financed and operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises-where the intent of the governing
body is that the cost (expenses, including depreciation) of providing goods or services to the general public on a
continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user charges. The basis of accounting employed is
the accrual method whereby revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are recognized when they
are incurred.
Adopted GASB Statements
The District has implemented the following GASB pronouncements during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018:
GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemp/oyment Benefits Other Than
Pensions - For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018, the District implemented GASB 75. Among other
things, GASB Statement No. 75 requires governments to report a liability on the face of the financial
statements for the other postemployment benefits ("OPEB") that they provide and requires governments
in all types of OPEB plans to present more extensive note disclosures and required supplementary
information about their OPEB liabilities.

GASB Statement No. 85, Omnibus 2017 - For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018, the District
implemented GASB 85. This Statement addresses issues that have been identified during
implementation and application of certain GASB Statements. Also, this Statement addresses a variety
of topics including issues related to blending component units, goodwill, fair value measurement and
application, and postemployment benefits (pensions and other postemployment benefits (OPEB).
Among other things this Statement redefines presentation of payroll related measures in the required
supplementary information by OPEB Plans.
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STARTEX-JACKSON-WELLFORD-DUNCAN WATER DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2018
{SEE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT)

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

New Pronouncements
The GASB has issued the following statements which may have a future impact on the District:
GASB Statement No. 87, Leases, effective for the periods beginning after December 15, 2019, requires
governments to recognize certain lease assets and liabilities for leases that previously were classified
as operating leases and recognize inflows of resources or outflows of resources based on the payment
provisions of the contract. It establishes a single model for lease accounting based on the
foundational principle that leases are financings of the right to use an underlying asset. Under this
Statement, a lessee is required to recognize a lease liability and an intangible right-to-use lease asset,
and a lessor is required to recognize a lease receivable and a deferred inflow of resources, thereby
enhancing the relevance and consistency of information about the governments' leasing activities.
GASB Statement No. 88, Certain Disclosures Related to Debt Including Direct Borrowing and Direct
Placements, effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2018, clarifies which liabilities should be
included when disclosing information related to debt and improves the information disclosed in the notes
to the financial statements related to debt, including direct borrowings and direct placements.
GASB Statement No. 89, Accounting for Interest Costs Incurred Before the End of a Construction
Period, effective for periods beginning after December 15, 2019, requires governments to recognize
interest cost incurred before the end of a construction period as an expense for the period in which the
cost is incurred for financial statements prepared using the economic resources measurement focus.
The requirements of this Statement will be applied prospectively.

Accounting Estimates
Management uses estimates and assumptions in preparing financial statements. Those estimates and
assumptions affect the reported amounts of assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, deferred inflows of
resources, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities, and reported revenues and expenses.
Change in Accounting Principle
During fiscal year 2018, The District adopted GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions. This Statement replaces the requirements of Statements No.
45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for Postemp/oyment Benefits Other Than Pensions, as
amended, and No. 57, OPEB Measurements by Agent Employers and Agent Multiple-Employer Plans, for
OPEB.
The primary objective of this Statement is to improve accounting and financial reporting by governments for
other postemployment benefits ("OPEB"). It is GASB's intention that this new statement will provide a clearer
picture of the size and nature of the District's financial obligations to current and former employees for past
services rendered.
In particular, this Statement requires the District to recognize a net OPEB liability (and any related deferred
outflows/inflows of resources) along with a more comprehensive measure of OPEB expense for the District's
OPEB Plan.
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STARTEX-JACKSON-WELLFORD-DUNCAN WATER DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2018
(SEE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT)

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Change in Accounting Principle (continued)
The adoption of this Statement has resulted in the restatement of the District's net position as of July 1, 2017 to
reflect the reporting of a net OPEB liability and deferred outflows of resources for its OPEB Plan in accordance
with the provisions of this Statement. See Note K for more information regarding the District's OPEB Plan.
As of July 1, 2017, the deferred outflows of resources, net pension liability and net position have been adjusted
as follows due to the implementation of these standards:

Deferred
Outflows
From
OPEB
Beginning balance, July 1, 2017

$

Deferred
Inflows
From
OPEB
$

Change in accounting principle
Adjusted balance, July 1, 2017

$

$

Net OPEB
Liabilitl
$

Net Position
$ 67,548,508

3,095,475

(3,095,475}

$ 3,095,475

$ 64,453,033

Revenues and Expenses
Operating revenues and expenses consist of those revenues and expenses that result from the ongoing
principal operations of the District. Operating revenues consist primarily of charges for services. Non-operating
revenues and expenses consist of those revenues and expenses that are related to financing and investing
types of activities and result from non-exchange transactions and ancillary activities.
Cash and Cash Equivalents
For purposes of reporting cash flows, all highly liquid investments (including restricted assets) with a maturity of
three months or less are considered to be cash equivalents.
Receivables and Allowance for Doubtful Accounts
Accounts receivable are stated net of their allowance for uncollectible accounts. Unbilled revenue, in the
amount of $733,000 at June 30, 2018 is included in the Accounts Receivable Customers.
Inventories
Inventories are valued at cost, using the average cost method. Inventories consist of expendable materials and
supplies held for consumption and materials to be used to expand or improve the distribution system.
Investments
In accordance with GASB Statement No. 31, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Certain Investments and
for External Investment Pools, and GASB Statement No. 72, Fair Value Measurement and Application, the
District reports all equity and debt securities at fair value in the Statement of Net Position and all changes in fair
value as income or loss in the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position.
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STARTEX-JACKSON-WELLFORD-DUNCAN WATER DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2018
(SEE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT)

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments (continued)
The District categorizes the fair value measurements of its investments based on the hierarchy established by
generally accepted accounting principles. The fair value hierarchy, which has three levels, is based on the
valuation inputs used to measure an asset's fair value: Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets; Level 2 inputs are significant other observable inputs; Level 3 inputs are significant
unobservable inputs.
As of June 30, 2018, the District's Certificates of Deposits and U.S. Treasury Obligations are valued using
quoted prices in active markets for identical assets (Level 1 inputs). As of June 30, 2018, the District's U.S.
Agency Obligations and Municipal Bonds are valued using significant other observable inputs (Level 2 inputs).
Contributed Capital
The District periodically receives donations of distribution systems, principally water lines, from developers as
well as .contributions from individual residents for the construction of certain water lines. The System accounts
for these contributions under GASB Statement No. 33, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Non-Exchange
Transactions. This statement requires that contributions be reported in the Statement of Revenues, Expenses,
and Changes in Net Position. The assets are recorded at acquisition value (an entry price) in accordance with
GASB Statement No. 72, Fair Value Measurement and Application.
Income Taxes
The District is recognized as a public utility for federal income tax purposes. Income is excluded from federal
income taxes under Code Section 115 of the Internal Revenue Code.
Capital Assets
Capital assets purchased or constructed by the District are carried at cost. Donated assets are recorded at
estimated fair market value on the date donated. Capital assets are defined as assets with an initial individual
cost of more than $1,500 or are comprised of individual component units that total more than $1,500 and have
an estimated useful life of more than one year. Depreciation is provided by the straight-line method over the
estimated useful lives of the respective assets. In general, estimated useful lives range as follows:
Buildings and related improvements
Distribution system
Heavy equipment
Laboratory equipment
Lyman filter plant
Lyman filter plant - membrane system
Maintenance equipment
Office equipment and furnishings
Reservoirs
Metering infrastructure
Vehicles

5-40 years
10 - 66 2/3 years
5 years
5 years
5-25 years
5- 50 years
5 years
5 -10 years
10 -100 years
15 years
5 years
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STARTEX-JACKSON-WELLFORD-DUNCAN WATER DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2018
{SEE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT)

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Capital Assets (continued)
The District records impairment losses, if any, on long lived assets used in operations when events and
circumstances indicate that the assets might be impaired and the undiscounted cash flows estimated to be
generated by these assets are less than the carrying amounts of these assets.
Capitalized Interest
Interest costs, less related interest income, are capitalized into construction in progress during an extended
period of construction. Capitalized interest expense was $20,023 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018.
Accrued Compensated Absences
The District provides eligible employees annual leave based on the number of years of service. When an
employee separates from employment, he/she is compensated for any unused annual leave. At June 30, 2018,
accrued annual leave amounted to $136,102. Accrued annual leave is included in current liabilities.
Employees also accumulate sick leave based upon months of service. Sick leave does not vest and is lost upon
termination of employment. A portion of accumulated sick leave, not to exceed thirty days, is included in
compensation at the time of eligible retirement. This liability is estimated to be $78,467 at June 30, 2018 and is
included in long-term liabilities.
Net Position
Net position is classified in the following three components: net investment in capital assets; restricted for
capital projects and debt service; and unrestricted net position. Net investment in capital assets consist of all
capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by outstanding debt and other liabilities that are
attributable to the acquisition, construction and improvement of those assets; unspent debt proceeds or other
restricted cash and investments are excluded from the determination. Restricted for capital projects and debt
service consists of net position for which constraints are placed thereon by external parties, such as lenders,
grantors, contributors, laws, regulations and enabling legislation less any related liabilities. Unrestricted net
position consists of all other net position not included in the above categories.
Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources
In addition to assets, the Statement of Net Position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred
outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a
consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of
resources (expense expenditure) until then. The District currently has two types of deferred outflows of
resources: (1) the District reports deferred outflows from pension in its Statement of Net Position in connection
with its participation in the South Carolina Retirement System. (2) The District reports deferred outflows from
OPEB in its Statement of Net Position in connection with the OPES Plan. The deferred outflows from pension
and OPEB are either (a) recognized in the subsequent period as a reduction of the net pension/OPES liability
(which includes contributions made after the measurement date) or (b) amortized in a systematic and rational
method as pension/OPES expense in future periods in accordance with GAAP.
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STARTEX-JACKSON-WELLFORD-DUNCAN WATER DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2018
(SEE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT)

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources (continued)
In addition to liabilities, the Statement of Net Position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred
inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an
acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of
resources (revenue) until that time. The District currently has one deferred inflows of resources: (1) The District
reports deferred inflows from pension in its Statement of Net Position in connection with its participation in the
South Carolina Retirement System. The deferred inflows from pension is amortized in a systematic and rational
method and recognized as a reduction of pension/OPES expense in future periods in accordance with GAAP.
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STARTEX-JACKSON-WELLFORD-DUNCAN WATER DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2018
(SEE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT)

NOTE B - CASH DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

Cash deposits are maintained within guidelines that require that all cash deposits either be secured by the
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation or be collaterally secured by obligations of the United States and
agencies or by general obligations of the State of South Carolina or any of its political units. As of June 30,
2018, all cash deposits were insured or collateralized as required by the District's policy.
The District also has an investment policy that requires that investments be limited to:
a.
b.
c.

Obligations of the United States and agencies thereof;
General obligations or revenue obligations of the State of South Carolina or any of its political units;
Savings and loan associations to the extent that the same are secured by the Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporation;
d. Certificates of deposit where the certificates are collaterally secured by securities of the type described
in (a} and (b) above held by a third party as escrow agent or custodian, of a market value not less than
the amount of the certificates of deposit, so secured, including interest;
e. Deposit accounts with banking institutions with maturities consistent with the time or times when the
invested monies will be needed in cash;
f. A common trust fund known as the South Carolina Pooled Investment Fund in which public monies may
be deposited;
g. No load open-end or closed-end management type investment companies or investment trusts
registered under the Investment Company Ad. of 1940, as amended, where investment is made by a
bank or trust company or savings and loan association or other financial institution when acting as
trustee or agent for a bond or other debt issue of that local government unit, political subdivision, or
county treasurer if the particular portfolio of the investment company or investment trust in which the
investment is made (i) is limited to obligations described in items (a), (b), (c), and (f) of this subsection,
and (ii) has among its objectives the attempt to maintain a constant net asset value of one dollar a share
and to that end, value its assets by the amortized cost method.
As of June 30, 2018, the District had the following investments, all of which were held by custodians in the
District's name. This schedule does not reflect investments that mature in three months or less. They are
considered cash equivalents.
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STARTEX-JACKSON-WELLFORD-DUNCAN WATER DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2018
(SEE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT)

NOTE B - CASH DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (continued)

Fair Value
June 30, 2018

Current Investments {maturing in FY 2019)

$

Certificates of Deposits
U.S. Treasury Obligations

942,961
77,457

U.S. Agency Obligations

604,135
$

1,624,553

Fair Value
Noncurrent Investments

Maturities

June 30, 2018

Certificates of Deposits

2 Years

Certificates of Deposits

3 Years

98,778

Certificates of Deposits

4 Years

238,945

Certificates of Deposits

5 Years

239,210

$

246,035

U.S. Treasury Obligations

2 Years

59,063

U.S. Treasury Obligations

6 Years

46,675

U.S. Agency Obligations

2 Years

736,976

U.S. Agency Obligations

3 Years

1,218,683

U.S. Agency Obligations

4 Years

1,168,503

U.S. Agency Obligations

5 Years

1,203,639

U.S. Agency Obligations

6 Years

1,192,092

7 Years

257,058

20 Years

52,934

U.S. Agency Obligations
Municipal Bonds

$

6,758,591
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STARTEX-JACKSON-WELLFORD-DUNCAN WATER DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2018
{SEE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT)

NOTE B - CASH DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (continued)

As of June 30, 2018, cash and cash equivalents consisted of:
2018

Cash deposits maintained in insured or collateralized
bank accounts

$

Petty Cash

2,403,337
2,074
826,644

U. S. Treasury money market accounts
S.C. Local Investment Pool

4,876,610

$

8,108,665

All cash and cash equivalents are noted as such on the Statements of Net Position.
Restricted cash and cash equivalents as of June 30, 2018 consisted of:
2018
2011 Revenue Bond Payment Fund
Principal and Interest Fund
2016 General Obligation Bond Fund
2017 General Obligation Bond Fund

$

70,899
1,348,133
936,991
2,903,714

$

5,259,737

Interest Rate Risk: The Commissioners amended the District's investment policy effective January 15, 2013.
The new policy states that unless matched to a specific cash flow, the District will have a maturity duration target
for investments of 10 years or less. Prior to January 15, 2013, the District's investment policy did not limit
investment maturities as a means of its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates.
Credit Risk: State law and District policy limits investments to securities of the type A through G described
above. As of June 30, 2018, all investments were either in FDIC insured certificates of deposit, U.S. Treasury
notes and bonds, U.S. Agency notes, or S.C. municipal bonds. The U.S. Agency securities were issued by the
following agencies:
Federal
Federal
Federal
Federal

Home Loan Mortgage Corporation
Farm Credit Bank
Home Loan Bank
National Mortgage Association
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STARTEX-JACKSON-WELLFORD-DUNCAN WATER DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2018
(SEE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT)

NOTE B - CASH DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (continued)
Concentrations of credit risk: The District places no limit on the amount the District may invest in any issuer. As
of June 30, 2018, the investments were as follows:

2018
U.S. Treasuries
U.S. Agencies
Certificate of deposit-FDIC insured
S.C. Municipal Bonds

2%
76%
21%
1%
100%

NOTE C - PROPERTY TAXES

Property taxes are levied against all real and tangible personal property located within the District. Taxes are
levied on real estate and personal property, other than vehicles, on assessed values as of December 31 of the
preceding year. Tax bills are mailed as soon after October 1st of each year as possible. Taxes are payable
without penalty until January 15th. Property goes into execution after March 15th. Taxes are levied on motor
vehicles throughout the year in the month designated by the South Carolina Department of Motor Vehicles for
annual license renewal. Tax bills on vehicles are normally mailed during the month prior to the month
designated for vehicle license renewal. Payment of the vehicle taxes must be made before the annual vehicle
license renewal process can be completed.
The County Treasurer collects the property taxes on behalf of the District. The County Treasurer periodically
remits the amounts collected to the District's designated agent f,or the principal and interest fund. Taxes
receivable (current and delinquent) represent property taxes that have been collected and remitted to the
County Treasurer's office for its distribution to the District. At June 30, 2018, taxes receivable amounted to
$26,205, and is included in Funds held by Spartanburg County Treasurer.
The District's uncollected assessed taxes that have been transferred to the County Delinquent Tax Collector
were $136,922 at June 30, 2018. The District has established an offsetting allowance for uncollectible taxes of
the same amount.
NOTED -TAX ABATEMENTS

The District is subject to tax abatements granted by Spartanburg County {the "County"). This program has the
purpose of increasing business activity and employment in the County.
Under the County's program, companies apply for a fee in lieu of property tax ("FILOT') agreement. The fee
agreed to under the FILOT agreement is further reduced by a Special Source Revenue Credit ("SSRC") if the
company fulfills a specified level of investment in the County within the timeframe stated in the FILOT
agreement. This provides the company with an incentive to relocate their facilities to the County.
Information relevant to these abatements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018 is as follows:
Tax Abatement
Program
Fee in Lieu of Tax

Original Ad
Valorem Tax
$

797,113

Fee
Dollars
$

392,998

Special Source
Revenue Credit
$

37,653

Amount Abated
During the Year
$

441,768
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NOTE E - DEBT SERVICE FUNDS
The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N. A., has been designated as the District's agent for servicing
certain general obligation bond debt. A portion of funds derived from property taxes levied on behalf of the
District are deposited to this account prior to the due date of the payment. The funds are used for the payment
of principal and interest on the District's general obligation bonds issued prior to July 25, 2014. As of June 30,
2018, the total value was $0.
Spartanburg County has been designated as the paying agent for general obligation bond debt issued on or
after July 25, 2014. Spartanburg County retains the remaining portion of funds derived from property taxes
levied on behalf of the District to service these bonds. As of June 30, 2018, the total value of funds held by
Spartanburg County amounted to $1,348,133.
U.S. Bank has been designated as the District's agent for its revenue bond payment fund. The District is
required to fund this account from the operating revenues of the District to ensure that funds are available when
principal and interest payments are due. As of June 30, 2018, the total value of this account amounted to
$70,899.
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NOTE F - CHANGES IN CAPITAL ASSETS
A summary of changes in capital assets is as follows for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018:

Balance
June 31, 2017

Additions

Disposals

Balance
June 30, 2018

CAPITAL ASSETS
Land and improvements
Buildings and related
improvements

$

1,483,694

$

$

$

2,124,778

Distribution system

2,124,778

41,905,637

Lake Cooley Reservoir
Vehicles

952,582
934,423

Sensus Meters

1,772,057

(25,651)

43,652,043

212, 183

(97,676)

952,582
1,048,930

452,500

Heavy equipment
Office equipment and
furnishings
Maintenance equipment
Laboratory equipment
Lyman Reservoir

794,590

7,496

658,721

361,794

452,500
802,086

520,293
55,891
1,043,575

Lyman Filter Plant
Lyman Filter Plant
Membrane System
North Tyger Reservoir
Apalache Reservoir
Berry's Pond

10,541,264

30,017

23,448,840
6,057,075

2,686

(115,086)

905,429

(19,241)
(5,227)

501,052
50,664
1,043,575
10,544,861

(26,420)

23,451,526
6,057,075
88,193

88,193
1,454,193

Construction in progress

$

1,325,947
93,389,696

1,483,694

1,454,193

$

4,781,722
7,620,455

$

(2,674,337)
(2,963,638)

$

3,433,331
98,046,512
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NOTE F - CHANGES IN CAPITAL ASSETS (continued)

Balance

Balance

June 30, 2017

Additions

Diseosals

June 30, 2018

ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
Land improvements
Buildings and related

$

improvements

99

$

2,284

1,370,981
12,608,293

736,376

Lake Cooley Reservoir

439,868

11,373

Vehicles

663,884

113,771

Distribution system

$

70,678

Sensus Meters
Heavy equipment

$

2,383
1,441,659
13,319,018

(25,651)

451,241
(97,676)

679,979

7,542

7,542

591,594

53,864

645,458

524,189

69,356

(115,086)

448,307

17,219

(19,241)
(5,227)

Office equipment and
furnishings
Maintenance equipment
Laboratory equipment

478,459
446,285

52,440

702

635,623

46,374

681,997

5,475,558

332,073

5,807,631

Membrane System

2,636,703

941,949

North Tyger Reservoir

1,097,969

58,602

63,573

4,409

67,982

$

55,706
26,664,787

3,864
2,470,436

$

59,570
28,845,922

$

66,724,909

$

69,200,591

Lyman Reservoir
Lyman Filter Plant

47,915

Lyman Filter Plant

Apalache Reservoir
Berry's Pond

NET BOOK VALUE OF
CAPITAL ASSETS

$

(26,420)

3,552,232
1,156,571

$

(289,301}
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NOTE F - CHANGES IN CAPITAL ASSETS (continued)
Construction in progress at June 30, 2018 consisted of the following:
Project

Expended as of
June 30, 2018
Apple Valley Rd
Brookside Village Upgrades
Enterprise Asset Management System - Phase II & Ill

$

Budget
$

50
73,767
30,280
32,267

Genoble Rd Inland 85 - Phase I
Lake Lyman Heights
Little Chicago Tank and Pump Station
Property purchase Spartanburg Hwy, Wellford
Pump Repairs & Replacement - Filter Plant
Pump Station Power Monitoring
Rogers Bridge Rd Pump Station
Sensus AMI Phase I
Smith Waters Dr-Lightwood Knot
Transportation Equipment

193,131
331,615

Water Treatment Technology Study
$

110,500
168,000
200,000
225,000
94,000

85,182

5,000,000
350,000
250,000

105,770
2,478,811

115,000
3,610,000

1,671

1,000,000
325,000
135,000

100,787
3,433,331

115,000
11,697,500

$
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NOTE G - GENERAL OBLIGATIONS BONDS
The following is a summary of general obligation bond transactions of the District for the fiscal year ended June
30, 2018:

Bonds payable, beginning of year

$

Bond proceeds
Payment on bonds
Amortization of bond premium
Bonds payable, end of year

2018
10,759,760
(2,340,000)

$

{26,489)
8,393,271

Bonds payable at June 30, 2018 were comprised of the following issues:
2018
$3,095,000 General Obligation Bond dated April 12, 2017. Annual maturities of $140,000 to
$1, 120,000 and semi-annual interest of 2%. The bond payable includes an original issue
premium of $43,004.

$

2,596,177

$2,915,000 General Obligation Bond dated January 26, 2016. Annual maturities of
$230,000 to $835,000 and semi-annual interest of 2%. The bond payable includes an
original issue premium of $83,961.

1,912,094

$4,585,000 General Obligation Bond dated January 21, 2015. Annual maturities of $50,000
to $1,065,000 and semi-annual interest of 1.42% per annum.

3,885,000

Total
Less current maturities
Long-term liabilities

$

8,393,271
{2,001,908)
6,391,363

Debt service requirements to maturity including interest on all outstanding general obligation bonds as of June
30, 2018 are as follows:
Year Ended
July 31,
2019
2020
2021
2022
2023

$

$

1,980,000

Issue
Premium

Interest

Principal
$

2,015,000
1,730,000

144,267
110,525
76,257

1,495,000
1,120,000
8,340,000

47,834
22,400
401,283

$

$

$

21,908
14,739
8,470
5,414
2,740
53,271

Total
$

$

2,146,175
2,140,264
1,814,727
1,548,248
1,145,140
8,794,554
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NOTE H - REVENUE BONDS
The following is a summary of revenue bond transactions of the District for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018.
The bonds are collateralized by the net revenues of the District.
2018
Bonds payable beginning of year
Payment on bonds
Bonds payable end of year

$

871,458

$

(259,182)
612,276

Bonds payable at June 30, 2018 were comprised of the following issues:
2018
$2,272,615 Waterworks System Revenue Refunding Bond dated May 13, 2011.
Payments of principal and interest at 3.0% per annum are due quarterly with annual
maturities of $218,258 to $277,212.
Less current maturities
Long-term liabilities

$

612,276

$

(267,047)
345,229

Debt service requirements to maturity, including interest, on the outstanding revenue bonds as of June 30, 2018
are as follows:
Period
Ended
6/30/2019
6/30/2020
6/30/2021

$

$

Principal
267,046
275,148
70,082
612,276

$

$

Interest
15,383
7,281
525
23,189

Total
282,429
282,429
70,607
635,465

$

$

NOTE I - CONTRIBUTED CAPITAL
Donated assets, grants and participation fees provided to finance capital expenditures are accounted for as
contributed capital. During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018, the following were received by the District to
partially finance plant extensions or additions:
2018
System improvement fees
Capital Contributed - Outside Source
Donated line extensions

$

$

454,000
78,875
464,255
997,130
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NOTE J - RETIREMENT PLAN

Description of the Entity
The South Carolina Public Employee Benefit Authority (PEBA), which was created July 1, 2012, administers the
various retirement systems and retirement programs managed by its Retirement Division. PEBA has an 11member Board of Directors, appointed by the Governor and General Assembly leadership, which serves as cotrustee and co-fiduciary of the systems and the trust funds. By law, the State Fiscal Accountability Authority
(SFAA), which consists of five elected officials, also reviews certain PEBA Board decisions regarding the
funding of the South Carolina Retirement Systems (Systems) and serves as a co-trustee of the Systems in
conducting that review.
Effective July 1, 2017, the Retirement System Funding and Administration Act of 2017 assigned the PEBA
Board of Directors as the Custodian of the Retirement Trust funds and assigned SC PEBA and the Retirement
Systems Investment Commission (RSIC) as co-trustees of the Retirement Trust Funds.
PEBA issues a Comprehensive Annual Financial Report ("CAFR") containing financial statements and required
information for the South Carolina Retirement Systems' Pension Trust Funds. The report is publicly available on
the Retirement Benefits' link on PEBA's website at www.peba.sc.gov, or a copy may be obtained by submitting
a request to PEBA, 202 Arbor Lake Drive, Columbia, South Carolina 29223.
Plan description
Substantially all of the District's employees are members of the South Carolina Retirement System (the
"SCRS"), a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the South Carolina
Public Employee Benefit Authority ("PEBA"). The SCRS was established effective July 1, 1945, pursuant to the
provisions of Section 9-1-20 of the South Carolina Code of Laws for the purpose of providing retirement
allowances and other benefits for employees of the state, its public school districts, and political subdivisions.
Membership
Membership requirements are prescribed in Title 9 of the South Carolina Code of Laws. A brief summary of the
requirements under the SCRS system is presented below.
Generally, all employees are required to participate in and contribute to the system. Employees with an effective
membership date prior to July 1, 2012, are considered a Class Two member, whereas, employees with an
effective membership date on or after July 1, 2012, are considered a Class Three member.
Benefits provided
Benefit terms are prescribed in Title 9 of the South Carolina Code of Laws. PEBA does not have the authority to
establish or amend benefit terms without a legislative change in the code of laws. Key elements of the benefit
calculation include the benefit multiplier, years of service, and average final compensation. A brief summary of
the benefit terms for SCRS is presented below.
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NOTE J - RETIREMENT PLAN (continued)

Benefits provided (continued)
A Class Two member who has separated from service with at least five or more years of earned service is
eligible for a monthly pension at age 65 or with 28 years credited service regardless of age. A member may
elect early retirement with reduced pension benefits payable at age 55 with 25 years of service credit. A Class
Three member who has separated from service with at least eight or more years of earned service is eligible for
a monthly pension upon satisfying the Rule of 90 requirement that the total of the member's age and the
member's creditable service equals at least 90 years. Both Class Two and Three members are eligible to
receive a reduced deferred annuity at age 60 if they satisfy the five or eight year earned service requirement,
respectively. An incidental death benefit is also available to beneficiaries of active and retired members of
employers who participate in the death benefit program.
The annual retirement allowance of eligible retirees or their surviving annuitants is increased by the lesser of
one percent or five hundred dollars every July 1st. Only those annuitants in receipt of a benefit on July 1st of
the preceding year are eligible to receive the increase. Members who retire under the early retirement provisions
at age 55 with 25 years of service are not eligible for the benefit adjustment until the second July 1st after
reaching age 60 or the second July 1st after the date they would have had 28 years of service credit had they
not retired.
Contributions
Contributions are prescribed in Title 9 of the South Carolina Code of Laws. Upon recommendations by the
actuary in the annual actuarial valuation, the PESA Board may adopt and present to the SFAA for approval an
increase in employer and employee contribution rates on the basis of the actuarial valuations, but any such
increase may not result in a differential between the employee and employer contribution rate that exceeds
2.9% of earnable compensation.
An increase in the contribution rates adopted by the PESA Board may not provide for an increase of more than
one-half of one percent in any one year.
If the scheduled employee and employer contributions provided in statute or the rates last adopted by the PESA
Board are insufficient to maintain a thirty-year amortization schedule of the unfunded liabilities of the plans, the
PESA Board shall increase the contribution rates in equal percentage amounts for the employer and employee
as necessary to maintain the thirty-year amortization period; and, this increase is not limited to one-half of one
percent per year.
If the most recent annual actuarial valuation of the Systems for funding purposes shows a ratio of the actuarial
value of system assets to the actuarial accrued liability of the system {the funded ratio) that is equal to or greater
than ninety percent, then the PESA Board, effective on the following July first, may decrease the then current
contribution rates upon making a finding that the decrease will not result in a funded ratio of less than ninety
percent. Any decrease in contribution rates must maintain the 2.9 and 5 percent differentials between the
employer and employee contribution rates respectively. If contribution rates are decreased pursuant to this
provision, and the most recent annual actuarial valuation of the system shows a funded ratio of less than ninety
percent, then effective on the following July first, and annually thereafter as necessary, the PESA Board shall
increase the then current contribution rates until a subsequent annual actuarial valuation of the system shows a
funded ratio that is equal to or greater than 90 percent.
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NOTE J - RETIREMENT PLAN (continued)

Contributions {continued)
The Retirement System Funding and Administration Act of 2017 increases employer contribution rates to 13.41
percent, effective July 1, 2017. It also removes the 2.9 percent and 5 percent differential and increases and
establishes a ceiling on employee contribution rates at 9 percent. The employer contribution rates will continue
to increase annually by 1 percent through July 1, 2022. The amortization period is scheduled to be reduced one
year for each of the next 1O years to a twenty-year amortization schedule. The recent pension reform legislation
also changes the long term funded ratio requirement from ninety to eighty-five. An additional 0.15% of payroll is
contributed by the employer to a group life insurance benefit for the participants.
As noted earlier, both employees and the District are required to contribute to the Plans at rates established and
as amended by the PEBA. The District's contributions are actuarially determined but are communicated to and
paid by the District as a percentage of the employee's annual eligible compensation. Required employer and
employee contribution (excluding the 0.15% employer contribution for the group life insurance benefit) for the
past three years are as follows:

Period ended
June 30, 2018
June 30, 2017
July 31, 2016
July 31, 2015

Employer
Contributions

Employee
Contributions
$

237,912
199,371
195,585
185,192

$

354,490
262,682
261,208
248,759

Total
Contributions
$

592,402
462,053
456,793
433,951

Net 12ension liabilit~
At June 30, 2018, the District reported a liability of $5,521,647 for its proportionate share of the net pension
liability. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2017 based on the July 1, 2016 actuarial
valuation "as adopted by the PEBA Board and SFAA which utilized membership data as of July 1, 2016. The
total pension liability was rolled forward from the valuation date to the plan's fiscal year ended June 30, 2017,
using generally accepted actuarial principles." The District's proportion of the net pension liability was based on
the District's normal contributions. At the June 30, 2017 measurement date, the District's proportionate share
was 0.024528% which was a decrease of 0.000084% from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2017.
Information included in the following schedules is based on the certification by the PEBA's consulting actuary,
Gabriel, Roeder, Smith and Company
The net pension liability (NPL) is calculated separately for each system and represents that particular system's
total pension liability determined in accordance with GASB No. 67 less that System's fiduciary net position. As of
June 30, 2017, NPL amounts for the SCRS are as follows:
Plan Fiduciary Net
Position as a
Employers' Net
Percentage of the
Pension Liability
Total Pension
Total Pension
Plan Fiduciary Net
System
Liability
Position
(Asset)
Liability
SCRS
$ 48,244,437,494
$ 25,732,829,268
$ 22,511,608,226
53.3%
District's Share
11,833,395
5,521,647
53.3%
6,311,748
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NOTE J - RETIREMENT PLAN (continued)
Net pension liability {continued}
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018, the District recognized pension expense of $428,705, and reported
deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources:

2018
Deferred
Outflows Of
Resources
Difference between expected and actual experience

$

Deferred
Inflows Of
Resources

24,615

Changes of assumptions

323,233

Net difference between projected and actual earnings on pension plan
investments

154,139

$

Changes in proportion and differences between District's contributions and
proportionate share of contributions

3,060

191,531

District contributions subsequent to the measurement date

$

334,144
836,131

$

194,591

At June 30, 2018, the District reported $334,144 as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting
from the District's contributions subsequent to the measurement dates and will be recognized as a reduction in
the net pension liability in the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of
resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as
follows:
Pension
Expense

Period ended

6/30/2019
6/30/2020
6/30/2021
6/30/2022

$

$

20,033
181,258
149,067
{42,962}
307,396
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NOTE J - RETIREMENT PLAN (continued)

Actuarial assumptions and methods
Actuarial valuations of the ongoing plan involve estimates of the reported amounts and assumptions about the
probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include assumptions about future employment,
mortality, and future salary increases. Amounts determined regarding the net pension liability are subject to
continual revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates are made about the
future. South Carolina state statute requires that an actuarial experience study be completed at least once in
each five-year period. An experience report on the Systems was most recently issued as of July 1, 2015.
The June 30, 2017 total pension liability, net pension liability, and sensitivity information shown in this report
were determined by the consulting actuary, Gabriel, Roeder, Smith and Company ("GRS"), and are based on an
actuarial valuation performed as of July 1, 2016. The total pension liability was rolled-forward from the valuation
date to the plans' fiscal year end, June 30, 2017, using generally accepted actuarial principles. The Retirement
System Funding and Administration Act of 2017 was signed into law April 25, 2017 and included a provision to
reduce the assumed rate of return from 7.50% to 7.25% effective July 1, 2017. As a result of this legislation,
GRS mad~ an adjustment to the calculation of the roll-forward total pension liability for this assumption change
as of the measurement date of June 30, 2017.
The following provides a brief description of the significant assumptions and methods used in the July 1, 2016
actuarial valuation:

Cost method
Investment rate of return
Projected salary increases
Inflation
Benefit adjustments

Entry age normal
7.25%
levels off at 3% to 12.5% (varies by service)
2.25%
lesser of 1.0% or $500 annually

The post-retiree mortality assumption is dependent upon the member's job category and gender. The base
mortality assumptions, the 2016 Public Retirees of South Carolina Mortality table ("2016 PRSC"), was
developed using the Systems' mortality experience. These base rates are adjusted for future improvement in
mortality using published Scale AA projected from the year 2016.
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NOTE J - RETIREMENT PLAN (continued)

Long-term expected rate of return
The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments is based upon 30 year capital market
assumptions. The long-term expected rate of returns represents assumptions developed using an arithmetic
building block approach primarily based on consensus expectations and market based inputs. Expected returns
are net of investment fees.
The expected returns, along with the expected inflation rate, form the basis for the target asset allocation
adopted at the beginning of the 2017 fiscal year. The long-term expected rate of return is produced by weighting
the expected future real rates of return by the target allocation percentage and adding expected inflation and is
summarized in the following table. For actuarial purposes, the 7.25 percent assumed annual investment rate of
return used in the calculation of the total pension liability includes a 5.00 percent real rate of return and a 2.25
percent inflation component.

Asset class

Target
allocation

Expected
arithmetic real
rate of return

Long term
expected portfolio
real rate of return

Global Equity
Global Public Equity
Private Equity
Equity Options Strategies
Real Assets
Real Estate (Private)
Real Estate (REITs)
Infrastructure
Opportunistic
GTAA/Risk Parity
HF (non-PA)
Other Opportunistic Strategies
Diversified Credit
Mixed Credit
Emerging Markets Debt
Private Debt
Conservative Fixed Income
Core Fixed Income
Cash and Short Duration (Net)
Total Expected Real Return

31.00%
9.00%
5.00%

6.72%
9.60%

2.07%
0.86%

5.91%

0.30%

5.00%
2.00%
1.00%

4.32%
6.33%
6.26%

0.22%
0.13%
0.06%

10.00%
4.00%

4.16%
3.82%

0.42%
0.15%

3.00%

4.16%

0.12%

6.00%
5.00%
7.00%

3.92%
5.01%
4.37%

0.24%
0.25%
0.31%

10.00%
2.00%

1.60%
0.92%

0.16%
0.02%

100.00%

5.31%

Inflation for Actuarial Purposes

2.25%

Total Expected Nominal Return

7.56%
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NOTE J - RETIREMENT PLAN (continued)

Discount rate
The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.25 percent. The projection of cash flows used
to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from participating employers in the SCRS will be
made based on the actuarially determined rates based on provisions in the South Carolina Code of Laws.
Based on those assumptions, each System's fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all
projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on
pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension
liability.
Sensitivity of the District's proportionate share of the net pension liability to changes in the discount rate
The following table presents the sensitivity of the District's proportionate share of the net pension liability of the
Plan to changes in the discount rate, calculated using the discount rate of 7.25 percent, as well as what it would
be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1% point lower (6.25 percent) or 1% point higher (8.25
percent than the current rate:
1% Decrease
6.25%
District's proportionate share of the net pension
liability

$

7,116,645

Current Discount
Rate 7.25%
$

5,521,647

1.0% Increase
8.25%
$

4,553,859

Pension plan fiduciary net position
Detailed information regarding the fiduciary net position of the plans administered by PEBA is available in the
separately issued CAFR containing financial statements and required supplementary information for SCRS. The
CAFR is publicly available on the Retirement Benefits' link on PEBA's website at www.peba.sc.gov, or a copy
may be obtained by submitting a request to PEBA, 202 Arbor Lake Drive, Columbia, South Carolina 29223.
Payable to Plan
The District reported a payable of $44,739 to the PEBA as of June 30, 2018, representing required employer
and employee contributions for the month of June 2018. This amount is included in the state retirement payable
on the financial statements and was paid in July 2018.
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NOTE K - OTHER POST - EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

Plan description and benefits provided
The District sponsors a single-employer defined benefit health care plan (the Plan) that provides post-retirement
health, dental and life insurance premium benefits for eligible employees and Commissioners. Eligible
employees are defined as a retired employee who is participating in the District's medical program and who is
eligible to retire under the South Carolina Retirement System. Eligible employees must have 15 years of
continuous service with the District. Eligible commissioners must have 10 years of service with the District.
Prior to age 65, retirees can stay ori the District's plan free of charge. Spouses of eligible retirees can stay on
the District's plan for an annual fee of $2,844. For retirees 65 and above, the District pays the full cost of
Medicare Supplement. During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018, twenty-one individuals met these eligibility
requirements. The District has not made any contributions to an irrevocable trust as of June 30, 2018, and
assets are not accumulated in a trust as defined by GAAP.
Employees covered by benefit terms
At July 1, 2017 (the valuation date) the following employees were covered by the benefit terms:

Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits
Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefits
Active employees

21

Total OPEB
Liabili!Y
1,090,000
$

40

3,971,000

Total

61

Count

$

5,061,000

Contributions
The contribution requirements of the Plan are established and may be amended by the District. For the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2018, the District contributed $123,686 to the Plan for current year premiums and claims.
Plan members receiving benefits contributed $5,258, or approximately 4 percent of the premiums and claims.
Employer contributions
The funding policy of the District is to contribute annually an amount sufficient to satisfy benefit payment
requirements to participants.
Employee contributions
Employees are not required to contribute to the Plan.
Total OPEB liability
The employer's total OPEB liability is reported herein as of June 30, 2018 for the employer fiscal year and
reporting period of July 1, 2017 to June 30, 2018. The values shown for this fiscal year and reporting period are
based on a measurement date of July 1, 2017 and the corresponding measurement period of July 1, 2016 to
July 1, 2017. The measurement of the total OPEB liability is based on a valuation date of July 1, 2017.
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NOTE K - OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (continued)
Actuarial assumptions and actuarial methods
The total OPEB liability in the July 1, 2017 actuarial valuation was determined using the following key actuarial
assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement:
Expected Return on Assets:

N/A

Discount Rate:

3.56%

Salary Scale:

2.50%

Healthcare Cost Trend
Rates:

7.00% for fiscal year end 2018, decreasing 0.50% per year to an
ultimate rate of 5.00%

Mortality:

RP-2014 Fully Generational Mortality Table, with base year
2006, using two-dimensional improvement scale MP-2017.

Actuarial Cost Method:

Entry Age Actuarial Cost Method.

Expected return on assets
None - there are no assets accumulated for the Plan.
Discount rate
The discount rate has been set equal to 3.56% and represents the Municipal GO AA 20-year yield curve rate as
of June 30, 2017.
Changes in the total OPEB liability

Balances at July 1, 2017
Changes for the year:
Service Cost
Interest Cost
Contributions - employer
Net changes
Balances at June 30, 2018*

Total OPEB
Liability
$
4,841,000

$

153,000
176,000
(109,000)
220,000
5,061,000

*Measurement date is July 1, 2017
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NOTE K - OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (continued)

Sensitivity of the total OPEB liability to changes in the discount rate
The following presents the total OPEB liability of the employer as of the measurement date calculated using the
discount rate, as well as what the employer's total OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a discount
rate that is 1-percentage-point lower or 1-percentage-point higher than the current rate:
Current
Discount Rate
(3.56%)

1% Decrease
(2.56%)
Employer's Total OPEB Liability

$

5,889,000

$

5,061,000

1% Increase
(4.56%)
$

4,391,000

Sensitivity of the total OPEB liability to changes in the Trend rate
The following presents the total OPEB liability of the employer as of the measurement date calculated using the
trend rate, as well as what the employer's total OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a trend rate
that is 1-percentage point lower or 1-percentage-point higher than the current rate:

Employer's Total OPEB Liability

1% Decrease
(6.00%)

Current Trend
Rate (7.00%)

$

$

4,331,000

5,061,000

1% Increase
(8.00%)
$

5,995,000

OPEB expense and deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB
For the year ended June 30, 2018, under GASB No. 75 the employer OPEB expense is $329,000. The Deferred
Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources related to OPEB as of June 30, 2018 from various
sources are as follows:

Differences between expected and actual experience

Deferred Outflows
of Resources

Deferred Inflows
of Resources

$

$

Changes of assumptions
Net difference between projected and actual
earnings on OPEB plan investments
Employer contributions after Measurement Date

118,428

but prior to fiscal year end
Total

$

118,428

$

At June 30, 2018, the District reported $118,428 as deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB resulting
from the District's contributions subsequent to the measurement dates and will be recognized as a reduction in
the total OPEB liability in the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019.

42

STARTEX-JACKSON-WELLFORD-DUNCAN WATER DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2018
(SEE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT)

NOTE L - DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLANS

Two deferred compensation plans are available to District employees. The multiple-employer plans, created
under Internal Revenue Code Sections 401(k) and 457, are administered and accounted for by the State of
South Carolina. Employees may withdraw the current year value of their contributions prior to termination of
employment if they meet certain requirements. These requirements differ between the two plans. The plans,
available to all District employees, permit them to defer a portion of their salary until future years. Participation
in the plans is optional and participants elect how their salary deferrals are-invested. The District matches 401(k)
contributions for all participating employees. The match is 50% of the employee contribution up to a maximum
of 3% of base pay. The District's deferred compensation match is included in retirement expense. Deferred
compensation expense for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018 was $27,002.
Contributions deferred under the Section 401 (k) and 457 plans are placed in trust for the contributing
employees. The District has no liability for losses under the plans.
NOTE M - CONCENTRATIONS OF CREDIT RISK

The District's financial instruments subject to credit risk are primarily trade receivables and cash equivalents.
Concentrations of credit risk with respect to trade receivables are limited due to the large number of customers
comprising the customer base. The District requires collateral to be pledged by those banks in which the District
has funds on deposit in excess of $250,000.
NOTE N - RISK MANAGEMENT

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets;
errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The District is insured under policies with
commercial insurance companies. The District did not have settled claims that exceeded the District's
insurance coverage during the past three years.
The District established a self-funded health insurance program effective December 1, 1989. Specific stop loss
coverage for each claim in excess of $40,000 as of June 30, 2018 and minimum annual aggregate stop loss
coverage for claims in excess of $1,000,000 as of June 30, 2018 is provided by a commercial insurance
company. Total expenses incurred for claims and stop loss coverage, net of any refunds for claims paid in
excess of stop loss amounts, for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018 amounted to $1,024,736. Total cumulative
funds set aside by the District and designated to meet future claims amounted to $1,449,673 as of June 30,
2018. The following represents the change in unfiled, unpaid claims from July 1, 2017 to June 30, 2018:
Liability, Beginning of year
Claims
Claim payments, net of refunds
Liability, End of year

$

$

2018
50,000
820,114
(812,114)
58,000

NOTE O - SUMMARY OF DISCLOSURE OF SIGNIFICANT CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

Sick pay
As described more fully in Note A, no estimate of any potential liability has been made except for those
employees eligible to retire.
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NOTE O - SUMMARY OF DISCLOSURE OF SIGNIFICANT CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
(continued)

Lake Cooley Recreation Facility
The District and Spartanburg County entered into an agreement in 2013 whereby Spartanburg County agreed
to fund the construction of a recreation facility in exchange for use of the facility for twenty years. If the
District decides to terminate the agreement in the first ten years of the agreement term, the District will
reimburse Spartanburg County for the full appraised value of the improvements. If the District decides to
terminate the agreement in the last ten years of the agreement term, the District will reimburse Spartanburg
County one-half of the appraised value of the improvements.
Federal and State Assisted Programs
The District has received proceeds from Federal loans, grants, ailld State grants. Periodic audits of these
loans and grants are required and certain costs may be questioned as not being appropriate expenditures
under the loan and grant agreements. Such audits could result in the refund of loan or grant monies to
the grantor agencies. Management believes that any required refunds will be immaterial. No provision has
been made in the accompanying financial statements for the refund of any loan or grant monies.
Other Contingencies
The District is routinely involved in various legal actions arising in the normal course of business. In the
opinion of management, such matters will not have a material effect upon the financial position of the District.
Arbitrage Rebate Liabilities
Arbitrage represents the difference of "spread" between lower interest rates on tax-exempt
government securities and the higher interest rates on taxable investment securities. The Internal Revenue
Code requires local governments to rebate arbitrage earnings to the federal government every five years for
those bonds that do not meet the spend down exception. In the opinion of management such rebates, if any
rebates are required to be paid, will not have a material effect upon the financial position of the District.
NOTE P - REPORT CLASSIFICATIONS

Certain previously reported amounts have been reclassified to conform to 2018 report classifications.
NOTE Q - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent events have been reviewed through November 19, 2018, which is the date of the
independent auditors' report.
On September 17, 2018, the District entered into a contract in the amount of $138,650 to complete a 12
inch water line along Anderson Mill Road.
On September 21, 2018, the District entered into a construction phase service agreement with Black &
Veatch in the amount of$150,000 for the new Little Chicago pump suation.
On October 15, 2018, the District entered into a guaranteed maximum price contract with Harper Construction
in the amount of $1,840,705 for the construction of the new Little Chicago pump station.
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NOTE Q - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS (CONTINUED)

On October 15, 2018, the District entered into a contract with Landmark Construction in the amount of
$2,280,721 for the construction of the new Little Chicago water tank.
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STARTEX-JACKSON-WELLFORD-DUNCAN WATER DISTRICT
SCHEDULE 1- SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN THE EMPLOYER1 S
TOTAL OPEB LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS
(SEE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT)

Last 10 Fiscal Years (as information becomes available)
Fiscal Year Ending June 30,

2018

Total OPEB liability
Service cost

$

Interest cost

176,000
(109,000)

Contributions - employer
Net change in total OPEB liability
Total OPEB liability -

beginning

Total OPEB liability -

ending

Covered-employee payroll
Employer's total OPEB liability as a percentage of covered employee payroll

153,000

220,000
4,841,000

$

5,061,000

$

2,414,000
209.65%

Notes to Schedule:
No assets are accumulated in a trust that meets all of the criteria set forth in GASB No. 75 to pay related
benefits.
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SCHEDULE 2 - SCHEDULE OF DISTRICT'S PENSION CONTRIBUTION
{SEE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT)

Year
Ended
6/30/2018
6/30/2017
7/31/2016
7/31/2015
7/31/2014
7/31/2013
7/31/2012
7/31/2011
7/31/2010
7/31/2009

Contractually
Required
Contribution
$
354,490
262,682
261,208
248,759
262,692
253,249
229,267
215,039
210,220
205,074

Actual
Contributions
$
330,179
262,682
261,208
248,759
262,692
253,249
229,267
215,039
210,220
205,074

Contribution
Deficiency
(Excess)
1
$
2

$

District's
Covered
Payroll
2,643,473
2,302,206
2,386,303
2,434,539
2,611,160
2,534,572
2,539,082
2,403,524
2,347,943
2,322,392

Contributions
As A Percentage
Of Covered
Payroll
12.49%
11.41%
10.95%
10.22%
10.06%
9.99%
9.03%
8.95%
8.95%
8.83%

Notes to Schedule:
1

In an effort to help offset a portion of the burden of the increased contribution requirement for employers, the
General Assembly funded 1 percent of the SCRS contribution increases for fiscal year 2018. The State's
budget appropriated these funds directly to PEBA for the South Carolina Retirement System Trust Fund.
PEBA received the funds from the state and in turn issued credit invoices based on the proportionate share of
the appropriated funds. The District applied the credit of $24,311 towards contributions otherwise due to the
System for the fiscal year.

2

Prior to August 1, 2016, the District's fiscal year ended July 31. As of August 1, 2016, the District adopted a
June 30 fiscal year end. As such, year ended June 30, 2017 reflects 11 months related to the transition from
the July 31 fiscal year basis to the June 30 fiscal year basis.
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SCHEDULE 3 - SCHEDULE OF DISTRICT'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF
THE NET PENSION LIABILITY
(SEE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT}

District's
Proportionate
Share Of The

Plan Fiduciary

District's

Net Pension

Net Position

Proportionate

Liability As A

As A Percentage

Proportion Of

Share Of The

District's

Percentage

Of The Total

Year

Net Pension

Net Pension

Covered

Of Covered

Pension

Ended

Liability

Liability

Payroll

District's

6/30/2018

0.024528%

6/30/2017

0.024612%

$

5,521,647

$

2,302,206

*

Payroll

Liability

239.8%

53.3%

5,257,087

2,386,303

220.3%

52.9%

7/31/2016

0.024612%

5,257,087

2,434,539

215.9%

52.9%

7/31/2015

0.025337%

4,805,284

2,611,160

184.0%

57.0%

7/31/2014

0.027491%

4,733,039

2,534,572

186.7%

59.9%

Notes to Schedule:

* The District's covered payroll as of June 30, 2017 reflects 11 months related to the transition from the July 31
fiscal year basis to the June 30 fiscal year basis.
Prior to August 1, 2016, the District's fiscal year ended July 31. As of August 1, 2016, the District adopted a
June 30 fiscal year end.
The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of the preceding fiscal year end.
Only five years of data were available; thus, only five years were presented.
The discount rate was lowered from 7.5% to 7.25% for the year ended June 30, 2018
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STARTEX-JACKSON-WELLFORD-DUNCAN WATER DISTRICT
SCHEDULE 4-SCHEDULE OF DIRECT OPERATING EXPENSES

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018
(SEE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT}

2018
Water purchased
Cost of meters, materials and fittings
Automobile and truck expense
Power-distribution and filter plant
Maintenance and repairs - equipment
Maintenance and repairs - system infrastructure
Maintenance of water tanks
Equipment rental
Chemicals and sludge removal
Lab expense
Less construction equipment cost capitalized

$

3,101
859,104
122,769
433,572
48,462
295,351
98,859
1,551
486,735
56,898
(15,257)

$ 2,391,145
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STARTEX-JACKSON-WELLFORD-DUNCAN WATER DISTRICT
SCHEDULE 5 - SCHEDULE OF GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018
{SEE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT)

2018
Salaries and wages

$

Insurance-employees
Retirement expense
Payroll taxes
Data processing
Postage
Office expense and supplies
Bank charges
Dues and subscriptions
Consultants' fees
Legal and accounting fees
Commissioners' fees
Public relations
Telephone
Utilities-office and maintenance facility
Insurance-general
Maintenance expense
Temporary labor
Miscellaneous expense
Small tools
Permits
Collection expense
Travel and related expenses
Training
Bad debts
Safety supplies
Cash (over) and short
Uniform expense
Less salaries and fringes capitalized

2,775,631
1,187,656
454,040
199,599
130,311
113,881
26,860
145,247
19,182
240,703
30,687
20,900
6,937
151,843
47,202
174,690
222,123
50,170
49,704
20,563
51,318
2,186
65,094
30,398
27,162
14,063
64

26,079
(105,843)

$

6,178,450
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SCHEDULE 6-SCHEDULE OF NONOPERATING REVENUES AND EXPENSES

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018
(SEE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT)

2018
NONOPERATING REVENUES
Interest earned on investments
Principal and interest funds

$

General obligation bond proceeds

12,456
75,775

Designated funds

178,738

Decrease in fair value of investments

(175,845)

Other miscellaneous income

7,617

Lake Cooley income

24,970

Lake Lyman income
Rents

39,385
32,927

Gain from sale of assets

23,000

TOTAL NONOPERATING REVENUES

219,023

NONOPERATING EXPENSES
Bonded debt interest expense

164,635

Less: interest capitalized

(20,023)

Agents' fees

2,345

Bonded debt issue expenses
Lake Cooley expenses

30,747

Lake Lyman expenses
Other lake expenses

28,345
1,356

TOTAL NONOPERATING EXPENSES
NET NONOPERATING REVENUES AND EXPENSES

207,405

$

11,618
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SCHEDULE 7 - PRINCIPAL AND INTEREST FUND RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018
(SEE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT)

2018

RECEIPTS
Property tax revenue
Investment income

$ 2,652,954
12,456
2,665,410

DISBURSEMENTS
Bonded debt principal
Bonded debt interest

EXCESS RECEIPTS OVER DISBURSEMENTS
TOTAL ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR

2,340,000
178,010
2,518,010
147,400
1,226,938

TOTAL ASSETS, END OF YEAR

$ 1,374,338

SCHEDULE OF NET POSITION
Investments (P & I Fund) - Cash Equivalents
Property taxes receivable

$ 1,348,133
26,205

$ 1,374,338
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Assessed Values
Assessment

As of

Assessed

Year

December 31

Value

2018

2017

218,757,684

Milla9e
12.0

2017

2016

208,554,760

12.0

2016

2015

208,962,232

10.0

2015
2014

2014

11.5

2013

193,640,770
187,556,773

2013

2012

177,039,881

12.0

2012

2011

173,695,943

11.8

2011

2010

175,512,601

11.9

2010

2009

176,709,484

13.2

2009
2008

·2008
2007

168,213,698

11.6

150,905,006

10.2

2007

2006

146,624,130

2006

2005

135,500,174

12.9
11.6

Fiscal Year

Current

Delinquent

Ended

Year

Tax

July 31
2018

$

Collections
2,590,618

$

12.0

Total

Colections

$

62,336

Collections

$

2,652,954

2017

2,431,384

54,737

2,486,121

2016

2,003,264

60,266

2,063,530

2015

2,176,772

98,484

2,275,256

2014

2,187,814

56,359

2,244,173

2013

2,090,232

50,417

2012

1,999,239

107,416

2,140,649
2,106,655

2011

2,173,400

97,783

2,271,183

2010

1,944,440

83,279

2,027,719

2009
2008

1,685,931
1,852,769

1,773,395
1,989,560

2007

1,596,199

87,464
136,791
159,621

2006

1,639,580

111,915

1,751,495

1,755,820
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JUNE 30, 2018
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2017 Market Value/Assessment Summary as of June 30, 2018
Assessed
Classification
Real Estate
Mobile homes

$

Retail
Utilities
Manufacturing

Value
119,434,656
1,406,372
9,512,190
7,413,970
32,981,360
668,848

Transportation
Vehicles

Assessment
Ratio
4%&6%
4%&6%

Market
Value
$ 2,683,654,481
32,872,088

10.5%
10.5%

90,592,286
70,609,238
314,108,190

10.5%
9.5%
6.0%

Boats
Aircraft
Furniture

18,804,147
388,570
1,320
707,640

10.5%
4.0%
10.5%

7,040,505
313,402,450
3,700,667
33,000
6,739,429

Fee in lieu of
property tax

27,438,611

6.0%

457,310,183

Totals

$

$ 3,980,062,517

218,757,684

2016 Market Value/Assessment Summary as of June 30, 2017

Classification
Real Estate
Mobile homes

$

Retail
Utilities
Manufacturing
Transportation
Vehicles
Boats
Aircraft
Furniture
Fee in lieu of
property tax
Totals

$

Market
Value

Assessed
Value
112,995,556

Assessment
Ratio
4%&6%

$ 2,468,792,985

1,365,438
11,862,070
5,323,110

4%&6%
10.5%

32,052,300
112,972,095

31,351,250
663,914
17,886,646
389,810
1,020
778,040

10.5%
10.5%
9.5%
6.0%
10.5%
4.0%
10.5%

50,696,286
298,583,333
6,988,568
298,110,767
3,712,476
25,500
7,409,905

25,937,906

6.0%

432,298,433

208,554,760

$ 3,711,642,648
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SCHEDULE 9 - COMMISSIONERS, SENIOR MANAGEMENT STAFF, AND OTHER
INFORMATION
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COMMISSIONERS

TERMS EXPIRE

Sanford E. Carlton, Chairman
Reidville, South Carolina

March 30, 2024

Frank Nutt, Vice Chairman
Moore, South Carolina

March 30, 2020

Wanda Fowler, Secretary
Duncan, South Carolina

March 30, 2020

Barry Frost
Duncan, South Carolina

March 30, 2022

John L. Sexton
Lyman, South Carolina

March 30, 2022

SENIOR MANAGEMENT STAFF
S. Michael Caston, PE, MPA

Chief Executive Officer

Larry G. Christopher, CPA, MPA
Billy Y. Cothran, PE

Chief Financial Officer
Chief Operating Officer

Jeffrey J. Diaz, MBA

Chief Information Officer

OTHER INFORMATION
Number of Customers (Active Accounts)
June 30, 2018
June 30, 2017

24,700
23,600

July 31, 2016

22,900

Number of Full-Time Employees
June 30, 2018

44

June 30, 2017
July 31, 2016

39
39
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDTING STANDARDS

Commissioners and Management
Startex-Jackson-Wellford-Duncan Water District
Lyman, South Carolina

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of Startex-Jackson-Wellford-Duncan Water
District (the "District") for the year ended June 30, 2018, and the related notes to the financial statements, which
collectively comprise Startex-Jackson-Wellford-Duncan Water District's basic financial statements, and have
issued our report thereon dated November 19, 2018.
Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the District's internal control
over financial reporting ("internal control") to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an
opinion on the effectiveness of the District's internal control.
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or,
significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal
control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not
been identified.
Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Startex-Jackson-Wellford-Duncan Water District's
financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct
and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an
opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to
be reported under Government Auditing Standards.
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Members of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants
Members of the South Carolina Association of Certified Public Accountants
Memb~rs of the North Carolina Association of Certified Public Accountants

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control or on
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communic~tion is not
suitable for any other purpose.

Spartanburg, South Carolina
November 19, 2018
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